Children’s Health Insurance Program
Solicitation No.:  INS CHIP 2008-4
Questions and Answers

Updated August 11, 2008
The Question and Answer Period has been extended until no later than 5:00 p.m. on Friday, August 8, 2008.  See “CHIP RFP Addendum – DGS Website – UPDATED 08‑06-08 PM.” 
If an Offeror has any questions regarding this RFP, the Offeror must submit the questions by email (with the subject line “INS CHIP RFP 2008-4 Question”) to the Issuing Officer named in Part I, Section I-3 of the RFP:  Chris Morrow, Pennsylvania Insurance Department, CHIP and adultBasic Office, 333 Market Street, Lobby Level, Harrisburg, PA  17120, RA-IN-CHIPInformation@state.pa.us.  Questions must be submitted via email no later than the date indicated on the Calendar of Events, July 23, 2008.  The Offeror shall not attempt to contact the Issuing Officer by any other means.  The Issuing Officer shall post the answers to the questions on the DGS website by the date stated on the Calendar of Events, July 29, 2008.
All questions and responses as posted on the DGS website are considered as an addendum to, and part of, this RFP in accordance with this RFP Part I, Section I-9.  Each Offeror shall be responsible to monitor the DGS website for new or revised RFP information.  The Issuing Office shall not be bound by any verbal information nor shall it be bound by any written information that is not either contained within the RFP or formally issued as an addendum by the Issuing Office.  The Issuing Office does not consider questions to be a protest of the specifications or of the solicitation.  The required protest process for Commonwealth procurements is described on the DGS website.  See Section I-29 of the RFP.
************************************************************************

Question 1:  I noted the response template is in PDF.  This makes it difficult to use the tables as noted in the PDF document.  Can the PID copy the response template into a Word document that all respondents can use?  (July 3, 2008)
Answer 1:  For your convenience, both Appendices F and G, the RFP Response Template and the Confirmation Certificate, have been uploaded in Word format.  Please feel free to use the Word documents if this makes your responses easier to provide.  
Question 2:  Is there any email list you maintain so we can be alerted to any changes in this RFP, or other RFP opportunities?  Or do we just look for changes on this website?

http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/GeneralEdit.aspx?SID=INS%20CHIP%202008-4  (July 7, 2008)
Answer 2:  One of the documents posted with RFP Number INS CHIP 2008-4 is entitled “Questions and Answers.”  The Department is required to make all questions and answers available to all potential bidders; therefore, all submitted questions and all responses provided by the Department will be listed in this evolving document.  As updates are provided, the title will be revised, e.g., “Questions and Answers 07/07/08.”  The Department will provide answers to all questions as soon as possible after receipt to allow for follow-on questions.  

As stated in the RFP at Section I-9, each Offeror is responsible for monitoring the website (http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/GeneralEdit.aspx?SID=INS%20CHIP%202008-4) for new or revised RFP information.  Please be sure to monitor this “Questions and Answers” document.  The Department will not send out notifications via email.  

As a reminder, you may submit questions to RA-IN-CHIPInformation@state.pa.us on or before July 23, 2008, at 5:00 p.m.  Contact through any other means is prohibited.  Answers to all written questions will be posted on the RFP Internet Website no later than 5:00 p.m. on July 29, 2008.   

Finally, for those interested in potential procurement opportunities with the CHIP and adultBasic Office, persons may contact the Office at 717-705-4198 and request to have a name and email address added to a distribution list used for general notifications to those who have expressed an interest in potential procurement opportunities within the CHIP and adultBasic Office.  
Question 3:  We've noticed that the RFP does not contain any mention of an autism benefit.  Does the recently passed autism mandate apply to CHIP?  If so, please describe the benefits which should be provided and included in the rate submitted.  Stated differently, is the Pennsylvania Insurance Department mandating any autism related benefits as part of the 2008 CHIP RFP?  If so, can the PID be extremely specific as to what types of benefits and maximums would be associated with this.  (July 8, 2008)

Answer 3:   The autism mandate in HB 1150, as passed by the General Assembly on July 3, 2008, “applies to any contract executed on or after July 1, 2009,” and therefore is not in effect at this time.  Prior to that implementation date (and continuing thereafter), contractors will be expected to determine eligibility for autism services through the Medical Assistance program.  This is consistent with the requirement in Part IV-3, A.5 of the RFP that “Each successful Offeror must have protocols in place to identify persons who may be eligible for Medicaid categories of coverage for which federal funds are available (e.g., pregnant women, persons with temporary or permanent disabilities, patients that may require transplants, etc.).  Protocols must include actions at time of application and renewal as well as periodic reviews of utilization data throughout the enrollment cycle.  Each Offeror is required to describe its process for identifying persons who may be eligible for Medicaid categories of coverage for which federal funds are available in the RFP Response Template at Appendix F, Part IV-3, A.5.”  Additional autism benefits required by the mandate for enrollees not eligible for autism services through the Medical Assistance program will be incorporated into the contractors’ duties and rates, as appropriate, in subsequent contract years. 

 

Question 4:  Please describe how detailed the information should be when responding to items A and B under Tab 4.  These appear to be somewhat redundant.  Please provide a list of all key executive and professional personnel you expect to see in the response.  For which positions in item A would you want a resume for item B?
Also, how is the information in this section any different from what is expected in IV-4 Requirements?  (July 8, 2008)

Answer 4:   The questions above pertain to pages 3 and 15 of Appendix F, the RFP Response Template.  Tab 4, Personnel, questions a and b, are reiterated below for ease in understanding the Department’s response:

a. Provide a list of executive and professional personnel who will be engaged in the work and show where they will be physically located.  Attach a job description for each position.

b. Identify key personnel such as project manager and Offeror’s administrator.  Provide a resume or similar document with education and experience in operations and delivery of children’s health insurance.  Indicate the responsibilities each individual will have in this project and how long they have been with the company.

The responses should be detailed enough to provide the Department with a full understanding of the personnel with responsibilities for the day-to-day operations (i.e., “engaged in the work”) and the management oversight of the Children’s Health Insurance Program if the Offeror would receive a contract under this RFP.  In item a, the Department would expect a more comprehensive list of the executive and professional personnel along with job descriptions for each.  It is not possible for the Department to list specific job titles expected in the response as these vary from company to company.  Examples could include but are not limited to the administrator for CHIP, the marketing and outreach coordinator, the manager of the company’s information technology department, the head of the company’s government affairs office, the supervisor for the company’s consumer hotline or call center,  etc.

For item b, the Offeror should identify the person(s) who will be the main administrator(s) or project manager(s) for CHIP.  This individual(s) should already be listed among the executive and professional personnel mentioned in item a, but will be specifically identified in item b as the administrator(s) or project manager(s) for CHIP.  The Department has requested this specific clarification because the variation in job titles among companies does not always make it clear to the Department who is being identified as the CHIP project manager.  A resume must be attached for the position(s) identified by the Offeror in item b, in addition to the other requirements listed.  Examples include but are not limited to positions identified as senior director, manager, CHIP program coordinator, manager of operations, etc.

On page 15, IV-4 Requirements, a table is provided which asks Offerors to list specific management functions including the individuals’ name, title, and location.  This differs from the question on page 3 in that it asks for information about individuals who may or may not be directly engaged in the work for CHIP, e.g., the administrator who has clear authority over the entire operation of the insurer, chief financial officer, etc., and it requires a response for subcontracted activities.  The Department recognizes that some questions will be redundant, e.g., the manager who will oversee the day-to-day performance under the contract, but requires a clear understanding of the Offeror’s organizational structure and the structure of its proposed subcontracted activities in order to accurately evaluate each Offeror’s ability to perform the required services.  

Stated Differently/Follow-up Question:  Tab 4 a of appendix F identifies providing job descriptions for each executive and professional position engaged in the work . The CHIP program will be administered via GHP governmental program with and Administrative staff of 4 employees. That staff reports up through the CEO of our organization. All professional and executive staff that would touch the CHIP program in any way could amount to 35 to 40 individuals. Is it the Department’s intent to require Job descriptions for all such personnel or the core executive and administrative support staff including our governmental programs unit. ?   (July 23, 2008)

Answer to Follow-up Question 4:  Please refer to the response provided above relating to Tab 4(a) of Appendix F.  The Department requires Offerors to provide a list of and job descriptions for those with day-to-day responsibilities and management oversight for CHIP – in other words, the “core executive and administrative support staff” including your governmental programs unit.
Question 5:  The following are questions concerning the Rating Information and the RCS forms as detailed on pages 29 and 30.  (July 8, 2008)
a. Are Offerors instructed to propose a single Blended rate (for the Free and the Low-Cost Programs) and a separate rate for the Full-Cost Program, or will there be a Total Program rate (for the Free, the Low-Cost and the Full-Cost Programs combined)?
b. Should the "RCS Detail Form for Total CHIP" referenced in the fourth bullet at the top of Page 30 project the Full-Cost Program PMPMs (based on the actual experience of the Free, the Low-Cost and the Full-Cost Programs combined but using the benefits and cost sharing of the Full-Cost Program)?
c. Should the "RCS Detail Form for the Full-Cost Program" referenced in the fifth bullet at the top of Page 30 show the actual experience data for the Full-Cost Program alone?

Answer 5:  The following answers are provided regarding the questions on Rating Information and the RCS forms as detailed on pages 29 and 30:
a. The Offerors are instructed to propose a single Blended rate for the Free and Low-Cost Programs and a separate rate for the Full-Cost Program.  Since the contractors do not have credible data, the rate for the Full-Cost Program must be developed from the Total Program (combined Free, Low-Cost and Full-Cost Programs).  The rate for the Blended Program must be developed from the Free and Low-Cost Programs only.
b. This is correct.  The “RCS Detail Form for Total CHIP” referenced in the fourth bullet at the top of Page 30 should project the Full-Cost Program PMPMs (based on the actual experience of the Free, the Low-Cost, and the Full-Cost Programs combined but using the benefits and cost sharing of the Full-Cost Program.

c. This is correct.  The “RCS Detail Form for the Full-Cost Program” referenced in the fifth bullet at the top of Page 30 should show the actual experience data for the Full-Cost Program alone.

Question 6:  Page 50, Part IV – Overview  (July 10, 2008)
Can you please clarify what is meant by, "At the Department's discretion, the Department may adjust its payment schedule from payment in anticipation of service, at the beginning of a coverage month, to payment in reimbursement of services as soon as practicable following the month of coverage."

Currently, an invoice is generated at the beginning of the month, i.e. July invoice, which includes all children who are enrolled for the month of July plus any adjustments from prior months, may be run 7/3.  Typically payment is not received until 30-45 days later.  Does this mean that you may change the run date of the July invoice to after 7/31?  With payment 30-45 days after this?

If so, could you please share the reasoning behind such a change?  
Answer 6:  Invoices will continue to be generated at beginning of the month of service.  Using the example in the question, the July invoice would be generated on or near 7/3.  Currently, the process of approval and payment of invoices begins as soon as invoices are received.  The language in the RFP allows for the possibility of beginning this process on the first business day, or as soon as practicable, after the month of service.  The department will provide sufficient notice to the contractor prior to implementing this revised reimbursement methodology.  At this time, the Department does not anticipate having to make this reimbursement change. 
This reimbursement change is being proposed to provide the Department with the ability to meet the financial requirements on CHIP, if the need arises.
Question 7:  Pages 60 - 61, Part IV-6 Collection of Premiums and Co-Payments (July 10, 2008)
These questions relate specifically to the cap of 5% on out of pocket expenses and the prohibition of cost sharing for American Indians and Alaska Native children.

In both instances, where we cannot administer cost sharing, I believe cost sharing refers to not only co-payments, but premiums as well.  Is this a correct assumption?

If this is the case, then should the total premium be billed to the state?  And, in fact, could these children be enrolled in the Free program or is another group number required to distinguish them from the rest of the free CHIP population?

Will CAPS be enhanced in order to allow an automatic transition or enrollment into the appropriate group?  Or is it expected that the contractors will be required to do a manual update to the appropriate group?

Answer 7:  Yes, this is a correct assumption.  Cost sharing refers to co-payments, deductibles, co-insurance and premiums.

 

American Indian and Native Alaskan children who are eligible by income for the Low-Cost component of CHIP and have been appropriately identified as such are not to be charged cost sharing, so no premiums or co-payments may be collected as per federal regulations.  These children would effectively be enrolled in the free program and the entire premium should be included in the invoice submitted to the state.  A successful Offeror will be required to manage the individual to the Free CHIP program in CAPS and add a note in the CAPS comments section explaining the reasoning behind the action.  This process will ensure the enrollee is issued an identification card which clearly indicates to the provider(s) that no cost sharing applies to his or her enrollment.  The Department does require the Offeror to describe this process in its proposal.

      

No enhancement to CAPS is currently planned for the transition of American Indian or Alaskan Native children although the Department has added a Program Change Request to address this issue that it anticipates will be prioritized and scheduled in a future release of CAPS.  

Follow-up question to Question/Answer #7

 

The answer specifically refers to American Indian/Alaskan Natives.  However, the question was asked regarding both those children in families who reach the 5% cap and children who are American Indian/Alaskan Natives.  Can we assume that the response would be the same for those who reach the 5% cap, meaning they too can be enrolled in the Free program until their renewal when they will be reevaluated and transferred, or remain if appropriate, to the appropriate program?

Response to follow-up question for question/answer #7:  Yes.  As stated in Section IV-3.A.6. of the RFP, if the Department confirms that the family has met the 5 percent limit prior to the expiration of the annual enrollment period, the Department will notify the contractor.  At that time, the contractor must exclude all cost sharing requirements for the remainder of the annual enrollment period.  

 

The Offeror’s proposal should include its solution to accomplishing the above task.  An Offeror may elect to manage the individual to the Free component of CHIP in CAPS to accomplish this.  If so, a successful Offeror will be required to a add a note in the CAPS comments section explaining the reasoning behind the action.  All processes proposed must ensure the enrollee is issued an identification card or other method through which it is clearly indicated to the provider(s) that no cost sharing applies to his or her enrollment for the remainder of the eligibility period. The proposed method must also include the manner in which the Offeror will continue to provide services without cost sharing until the point of the renewal when the individual will be reevaluated and transferred, if appropriate, to the appropriate component of the program.  

 

Offerors must describe the method through which it will exclude cost sharing requirements for enrollees who have met the 5 percent cap in the RFP Response Template, Appendix F, Part IV-3.A.6.

 

It should be noted that in the 16 months following the expansion of CHIP eligibility, the Department has not had a single family claim to have met the 5% out-of-pocket expense limit.

Question 8:
Page 6, Part I - 12 Proposals (July 10, 2008)
This question is in regard to the submission of the proposal on a CD or Flash drive.

Can all three proposals be submitted on the same device, or must there be a separate device for each of the three submissions (i.e. 1 cd for technical, 1 cd for cost, and 1 cd for disadvantaged business)?  
Stated differently, on page 6 of the RFP, it's stated that "Offerors shall submit two Complete and Exact copies of the entire proposal (Technical, Cost and Disadvantaged Business Submittals, along with all requested documents) on CD-ROM or Flash drive...". On page 27 of the RFP, it's stated that "each cost proposal must be sent on a CD-ROM or diskette as a file that provides the data submitted on the hardcopy RCS forms." How many CD-ROMs of the Cost proposal are required? Is it one copy on one CD-ROM, or is it two copies on one CD-ROM or is it two CD-ROMS each containing one copy?

Answer 8:  All sections of the Offerors’ proposals must be kept separate whether provided in written or electronic form.  The Technical, Cost, and Disadvantaged Business submittals must each be provided on a separate device.  The rationale for this is because each portion of the Offeror’s total proposal, stored on its separate electronic device, will be utilized by a different group or subset of evaluators for the contract determination process.  The electronic submission of each component must be kept separate, just as the written portions must be kept separate and described in the RFP.
To clarify the second part of question 8, each portion of the Offeror’s proposal (Technical, Cost, and Disadvantaged Business submittals) must be submitted in electronic format as two CD-ROMS (or flash drives), each containing one copy, for each of the three portions.  In total, each proposal submitted should contain six CD-ROMS or flash drives in addition to the required number of paper copies.
Question 9:  Page 56, Part IV - A.2 Enrollee Help Line (July 10, 2008)
Can you please clarify what is meant by "Special Needs" unit?  What specific items is this unit to address?  Is it a requirement that the contractor has a "Special Needs" unit?

Answer 9:  The Department is not specifically requiring Offerors to have a “special needs unit” per se.  It is our expectation, however, that Offerors have a specific mechanism to assist and direct families who have children with special needs such as asthma, diabetes, or more rare or serious conditions, etc., where they can receive referrals to specialists; the Medical Assistance Program, if appropriate; or counseling if they are having difficulty obtaining services or when their Primary Care Providers are unaware of services that might be available to the family.   
Question 10:  Page 59, Part IV - A.5 Eligibility, Enrollment, and Renewal Procedures (July 10, 2008)
This question is in regard to the supervisory review of negative actions that occur at the time of renewal.

Does this review have to occur prior to the generation of the renewal letter that would communicate the change or can it occur after the fact?

Answer 10:  The review should be completed before the negative action is relayed to the consumer.  If the supervisor reviews and finds the decision to be accurate based on the information provided and the program policies, the appropriate letters will be generated.  It is preferred that an adverse letter not be generated pre-review only to find that the decision was erroneous for some reason and have to generate additional letters and manually manage the case to the correct program.

Follow-up question to Question/Answer #10  :  The answer to question 10 states that the supervisory review of negative actions at the time of renewal must occur prior to the notification being sent to the family.  As you know there is a very short timeframe between the time a renewal is submitted and the generation of the letter, specifically that timeframe is overnight.  This means systems will have to be enhanced in order to pend any letters of negative action so they are not generated before a review is completed.  As part of our response to the RFP we have to describe our process for ensuring that these supervisory reviews are completed.  Is it appropriate for Offerors to offer an interim process and in addition make a proposal for a long term process solution for these reviews?

Answer to Follow-up Question #10:  Please note that this response revises the answer the Department provided previously to question #10.  

 

As you may be aware, the purpose of a Request for Proposals is to seek a contractor's solution to a purchasing agency's need and to provide flexibility in the Offeror's proposal regarding services. The RFP requires that a supervisory review be conducted on negative actions. In response to the original question of when the review should be conducted, the Department suggested that a supervisory review be done prior to sending out a notice to the family. If this cannot be accomplished without enhancements to the IT systems (letter generation system), the Department would accept the Offeror's input on how the Offeror would suggest to meet the requirement in the RFP of supervisory review of negative actions.  We would accept both an interim process and any proposals for a long-term process solution for the reviews.  If you include a long-term process solution, please include your expected timeframe for the process.

Question 11:  Page 62, Part IV - A.7.a Assignment of PCP (July 10, 2008)
This question is in regard to the statement, "Each successful Offeror may establish and maintain a referral process to effectively manage the care of its enrollees, but that process may not restrict access to medically necessary services.  Enrollees shall be permitted to use providers of their choice to the extent that those providers are (except in emergencies) in the contractor's provider network." 

Generally, the PCP will give the patient a choice of specialty providers when they are making a referral, provided there is more than one choice.  Once the specialty provider is selected, however, the patient must see this specialty provider.  Is it the expectation of the Department that the enrollees would have more of a choice?

Answer 11:  In a situation where the PCP is relegated by the insurance company to utilize certain ancillary service providers such as a diagnostic group, e.g., Tristan; a rehabilitation contractor, e.g., Health South; or a laboratory network, e.g., Quest Diagnostics, then enrollees can be required to frequent the providers within the scope of those networks.  (The specific providers noted are for illustration only.)  However, it is the Department's expectation that if an enrollee is required to get a referral by a PCP and is referred to a physician specialist with whom they are not satisfied, then the PCP, if possible, should be able to provide other options.  
Question 12:  Page 63, Part IV - A.7.b Primary Care Dentist or Other Provider (July 10, 2008)
This section discusses the option of having enrollees select a Primary Care dentist.  If the Offeror does not require the selection of a Primary Care dentist is it required that they include a listing of participating dentists in the provider directory?
Answer 12:  Yes, even if the Offeror does not require selection of a primary care dentist, it must provide the available dentists in the network in the provider directory.  Offerors are permitted to maintain a separate directory for dentists.    

Question 13:  Page 68 - 69, Part IV - B.1.u.2 & 3 Benefit Plan, Drug and Alcohol Abuse Treatment (July 10, 2008)
Current CHIP benefits for Non-Hospital Residential Treatment and Outpatient Services include a lifetime max of 360 days.  This RFP does not list a lifetime limit for these benefits.  Are we to assume that those lifetime limits have been removed?

Answer 13:  All lifetime maximums have been removed.
Question 14:  Page 92, Part IV-4.H.5. (c) Chronic Care Learning Collaborative Participation (July 10, 2008)
This question relates to the Financial Support section.

Is the financial support for Chronic Care Learning Collaborative participation to be incorporated as a claim expense or administrative expense?

Answer 14:  The financial support for Chronic Care Learning Collaborative participation should be incorporated as a claim expense.  Please use Line 23 on the RCS forms.
Question 15:  We notice that the sequencing of sections in the Work Statement is not always sequential (e.g., E.5 is followed by E.7 and there is no E.6; E.8 is followed by E.11 and there is no E.9 or E.10.)  We want to confirm that this is accurate and that we are not missing sections of the Work Statement.  (July 10, 2008) 

 
Answer 15:  The question appears to refer to Tab 9, Work Statement, of Appendix F, the RFP Response Template.  The Department does confirm that the RFP Response Template is accurate as written and there are no missing sections in Tab 9, Work Statement, of the RFP Response Template.  The questions in the RFP Response Template refer back to major headings in the RFP itself.  For example, E.5 references “Standing Referrals/Specialist as a PCP/Medical Home” on page 82 of the RFP and E.7.  references “Physician Specialists” on page 83 of the RFP.  E.6 was not addressed in the RFP Response Template because no response is required from Offerors.  Rather, E.6. contains a statement wherein the Department encourages contractors to establish PCP/Medical Home teams that include Licensed Nurse-Midwives, CRNPs, and/or physician assistants and requires the Contractor to organize its PCP/Medical Homes to ensure continuity of both medical and non-medical care to enrollees.  The Department does not require a response for this section of the RFP.  The same is true for sections E.9 and E.10.
 

Question 16:  Question A.5.g in the Work Statement states the following:  “Describe the corrective steps taken if performance falls below the standards listed above in A.4.f.”  (Note: we think this is a typo.  Do you mean A.5.f?)  (July 10, 2008)
Answer 16:  The question appears to refer to Tab 9, Work Statement in Appendix F, RFP Response Template.  The specific question is located on page 10, A.5.g., of Appendix F.  The question should read, “Describe the corrective steps taken if performance falls below the standards listed above in A.5.f.”  This was a typographical error.
Question 17:  Question B.1.e in the Work Statement includes a chart re: contractor allowances for vision care.  Specifically the chart lists emergency, preventative, and routine.  Emergency care does not fit the “contractor allowance” model.  In other words if a member has an eye emergency we would pay the negotiated contracted rate to the hospital ER or ophthalmologist and not a specific allowance.  And depending on the place of service the member may be responsible for a co-payment (ER or specialist).  How would you like this point addressed within this section?       (July 10, 2008)
 
Answer 17:  Address only the allowances applied to exams and eyewear.  The wording used in the chart is a direct restatement of the vision benefit as noted in the RFP under the benefits section and was not meant to imply that an allowance should be applied to emergency services.
Question 18:  The Personnel section includes the following question:  “d. Describe any contractual relationships with organizations necessary to the Offeror’s full support of the CHIP projects (e.g., actuarial services, clinical staff, data information services, etc.).”  Can you clarify what specifically you are looking for in this response?  Is it a summary of sub-contracts we have in place to provide CHIP services (e.g., dental, vision, pharmacy)?  (July 10, 2008)
Stated differently, what kinds of contracts are required under Appendix F, Tab 4 Personnel, letter D?  Should we include any of the Pharmaceutical companies that we have rebate contracts with be included?  These are asked for under the Pharmacy questions.  (July 11, 2008)

Answer 18:  In the Personnel section, letter D of Tab 4 of Appendix F, RFP Response Template, Offerors are required to describe any contractual relationships with organizations necessary to the Offeror’s full support of CHIP projects.  The Department is looking for a summary of all subcontracts in place to provide CHIP services in order to determine if the Offeror is capable of meeting the requirements specified within the RFP.  Examples include but are not limited to dental, vision, actuarial services, clinical staff, data information services, pharmaceutical companies, etc.  All contractual relationships should be listed in this section regardless of where they may be mentioned elsewhere in the RFP Response Template.  You may briefly mention the contractual relationship in Tab 4, letter D, and reference the section of the Proposal where further detail is provided, if desired. 
Question 19:  I cannot find any specific reference within the RFP that indicates requirements for what information should (or should not) be included in the page headers and footers (e.g., page numbers, RFP number, etc.)  Are there specific requirements and if so where in the RFP can they be found?  Also are there specific requirements re: information that should be included on the front covers of each binder?  (July 10, 2008)
Answer 19:  There are no specific requirements within the RFP for what information should or should not be included in the page headers and footers other than the requirement for page numbering.  Part I-12, Proposals, beginning on page 6 states, “Each proposal page should be numbered for ease of reference.”  Part II, Proposal Requirements, Technical Submittal section states, “If publications (such as brochures, pamphlets, etc.) are supplied to augment a response to a requirement, the response should include reference to the document number and page number.  This will provide a quick reference for the evaluators.  Proposals not providing this reference will be considered to have no reference material included in the additional documents.”
 
As a general reminder, all Offerors should follow the instructions in the RFP in Part I-12, Proposals, beginning on page 6 and Part II, Proposal Requirements, beginning on page 18 in addition to any other instructions or requirements throughout the RFP.  
 
There are no specific requirements for what should be included on the front covers of each binder.  Part I-16, Economy of Preparation, provides this direction: “Technical proposals must not exceed two (2) three-inch (3”) binders in length.  The first binder should include the Offeror’s Technical response; the second may contain items such as addenda to the Technical response.”  It is advisable for each Offeror to include, at a minimum, the Offeror’s name, the Offeror’s federal ID number, the RFP number (RFP# INS CHIP 2008-4), the date the proposal is submitted, and a clear title/label for each binder naming it either the Technical Response or the Attachments to the Technical Response.
Question 20:  Questions H.2.f. and H.2.g. of the Response Template (pg 31) refer to NCQA accreditation.  The preceding questions concern case management.  Specifically, is the PID requesting documentation of accreditation for the health plan (i.e., NCQA), case management, or both?  Please clarify.  (July 10, 2008)
Answer 20:   The Department is asking Offerors to provide a copy of the NCQA accreditation certificate for the “health plan” as a whole.  In H.2.g., if the Offeror is not submitting an accreditation certificate for the health plan due to having previously submitted it to the Department, then all that is needed is the date when submitted to Department and the timeframe the accreditation covers.
Question 21:  On pages 28 and 29 of the RFP, the Co-payment for the Low Cost program brand name retail drugs is listed as it was for the prior contract as $9.  On page 60, this same Co-payment is listed as $10.  Can we assume that page 60 is a misprint and that the Co-payment is still $9?  If not, what is it?  (July 11, 2008)
Answer 21: Page 60 does contain a misprint.  The co-payment for brand name prescriptions for the Low-Cost component of CHIP should have been listed as $9.  The Department apologizes for this error.
 
Question 22:  On page 42 of the RFP, the Historical Experience Data is requested for the Blended Free and Low-Cost Program by calendar year starting at year 2000.  On page 44 of the RFP, the request is for "the actual experience data for the Full-Cost Program and Blended (Free and Low-Cost) Program, for each calendar year starting at Year 2000, as of the date used for the data in item II-5.A.9 (b) above.”  Does this mean:

A) 
2 Appendix L worksheets must be submitted, one that contains the Free and Low-Cost experience rolled together for each calendar year starting in 2000 and one that contains the Free, Low-Cost and Full-Cost experience rolled together for each calendar year starting in 2000. 



Or

B) 
2 Appendix L worksheets must be submitted, one that contains the Free and Low-Cost experience rolled together for each calendar year starting in 2000 and one that contains only the Full-Cost experience for each calendar year starting in 2000?


And where is Item II-5.A.9 (b) and what is the date for II-5.A.9 (b) referred to on page 44 of the RFP?  (July 11, 2008)
Answer 22:  The current CHIP contractors must submit one Appendix L worksheet for the Blended Program (Free and Low-Cost), as described on page 42, at this time.
Page 44 gives instructions for the Historical data that is to be provided in subsequent years.  In the subsequent years, two Appendix L worksheets must be submitted, one for the Blended Program and one for the Full-Cost Program.
                        
Item II-5.A.9 (b) refers to the second last paragraph on page 43 under the “Rate Adjustment for Subsequent Years.”
Question 23:  If a contractor were going to include a benefit for nutritional counseling, could this be classified as a benefit which is rated in the medical benefit or would it have to be classified as an optional benefit?  (July 11, 2008)
Answer 23:  Nutritional counseling will be classified as a medical benefit.  The cost must be included under the “Chronic Care Learning” category (Line 23 on the RCS worksheet).
Follow-up Question to #23:  The answer to question #23 indicates that the cost of nutritional counseling must be included under the “chronic care learning” category.  We provide nutritional counseling as a medical benefit regardless of diagnosis.  However in the context of the “chronic care learning” category do you want us to also include the cost associated with diabetic education, which is separate from how we capture the cost of nutritional counseling, on line 23 of the RCS worksheet?   (July 21, 2008)
Answer to Follow-up Question #23:  Answer: Yes, diabetic education should also be included in the “chronic care learning” category (Line 23 of the RCS form).

 
Question 24:  Please clarify your definition of “Restrictive Formulary”? The RFP's definition is unclear in light of the format of many formularies have prior authorizations, medical exceptions, …i.e. age restrictions, gender.  (July 11, 2008)

Answer 24:  The question refers to restrictive formularies as related to members being relegated to certain preferred drugs, step therapies, etc.   
Follow-up/Repeat Question 24:   Please clarify your definition of “Restrictive Formulary”. The RFP’s definition is unclear in light of the format of many formularies have prior authorizations, medical exceptions …i.e. age restrictions, gender.  (July 23, 2008)

 

Response to Follow-up/Repeat Question 24:  You are correct that the definition of “restrictive formulary,” read by itself, may be unclear.  For that reason, the definition is hereby clarified to be consistent with other portions of the RFP.  In part IV-4, Subsection D:  “Pharmacy Requirements,” the RFP states:

             
"Contractors are permitted to provide either an open or restrictive formulary.  If a contractor uses a restrictive formulary, it must allow prompt access to other drug products that are medically necessary through an appropriate exception process such as prior approval or prospective utilization review.  The exception process must be described in the enrollee handbook. "

  

 Additionally, in Part IV-3, Subsection B(3), the RFP states:  

 

“Each successful Offeror may require prior authorization of a service except as otherwise specified herein.  If electing to require prior authorization, the contractor must establish and maintain written policies and procedures that may be reviewed by the Department at its discretion.  The policies and procedures must include an expedited review process to address situations when an item or service must be provided on an urgent basis.  Contractors must individually identify service(s), medical item(s), and/or therapeutic categories of drugs to be prior authorized.  In addition, the list of services to be prior authorized must be submitted to the Department with the response to this RFP.  
 
Contractors must demonstrate how written policies and procedures for requests for prior authorization comply and are integrated with the enrollee notification requirements and enrollee grievance and appeal procedures.
 
Prior authorization policies and procedures must comply with Act 68.”
 

Therefore, the definition of “restrictive formulary” should note that Offerors may utilize a restrictive formulary that requires prior authorization or other processes.  Note that Offerors are required to provide the Department with a copy of their formulary, restrictive or otherwise.

 

Question 25:  Does PID want the formulary submission in member format or in EXCEL format?  Is the 30 day supply for medication stated in the RFP?  (July 11, 2008)

Answer 25:  The question is unclear in terms of the difference between the two examples; however, the Department did not have a specific format in mind and therefore the Offeror’s preference is acceptable as long as the format is straightforward and understandable from a layperson’s point of view.
Question 26:  Can we get companion guides for the files that are identified within the RFP....for example, HIPAA 834, 837, etc.  While they are referred to as being HIPAA compliant files, companion guides are typically offered to address the finer points of their requirements.  (July 11, 2008)

Answer 26:  The 834, 837 Dental, 837 Institutional, 837 Professional, and NCPDP 5(1).1 Companion Guides along with the CFF Schema, CFF Draft file specification (goes into production 4th quarter 2008), Contractor ID Specification, Letter Generation File, Health Care Provider information file specification and Provider File have been uploaded to accompany this response.  All are Excel and word documents and all are available at http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/GeneralEdit.aspx?SID=INS%20CHIP%202008-4.

Follow-up Question to #26:  Regarding the 834 and letter generation files, what is the flow and schedule for these files, are there any procedural documents that accompany the companion guides?  (July 23, 2008)

Response to Follow-up Question #26:   The interface activities matrix is attached and available at http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/GeneralEdit.aspx?SID=INS%20CHIP%202008-4.  See the document entitled, “Interface Activities Matrix - CHIP RFP.xls.”  
 
Follow-up Question to #26:  (1) We would like to inquire about the flow of information between us and PID concerning the 837 submissions.  What will we receive after submitting an 837?  Is there a TXN, 277 or some other type of response? (2) What is the expectation around encounters that need to be corrected after an initial submission?  (3) What is the process for submitting adjusted encounters? (4) What are the requirements for submitting an NPI on an encounter file?  (5) Do they provide a crosswalk file of NPIs like the prv430? (July 23, 2008)

 
Response to Follow-up Question #26:  

 
(1) The contractor will receive a 997 acknowledgement for each encounter file submitted to CAPS.  We will not send any claim level acknowledgment, such as the 277.  
 
(2) The expectation is that the contractor will not submit the claim to us unless it has passed validation on its end.  So, an incorrect encounter should not be submitted to us.  Once the encounter is validated to the point that it is either paid or denied, then it should be submitted to us.   Detailed instructions on this process will be provided during on-boarding of successful Offerors.  
 
(3) Our process is to receive replacement encounters when an adjustment is required.  If an adjusted encounter occurs on the contractor side, it should send a replacement encounter for the original, following the adjustment. Detailed instructions on how to handle adjustments will be provided during on-boarding of successful Offerors.
 
(4) We would expect NPI on all encounters, where available.  However, if NPI is not available, we would still expect the contractor to send the encounter.  Because NPI is now mandated, all approved (i.e., paid) encounters should contain an NPI.  If no NPI is provided to the contractor, it is our understanding that it is denying these claims.  
 
(5) No, we do not offer any crosswalk file for NPI at this time. 
 
Follow-up Question to #26:  Is it the intent of the Insurance Department to provide a copy of the CAPS user manuals?  (July 23, 2008)

Responses to Follow-up Questions #26:  The CAPS User Guide is actually a series of files, not one single file.  Those files have been uploaded and are available at 

 http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/GeneralEdit.aspx?SID=INS%20CHIP%202008-4. See these documents:  “CAPS users Guide 8.0 Cover Page.doc, CAPS Users Guide 8.0 Section 1 Introduction.doc, CAPS Users Guide Section 2 Application Entry.doc, CAPS Users Guide Section  Application Maintenance.doc, CAPS Users Guide Section  4 Eligibility.doc, CAPS Users Guide Section 5 Renewals.doc, CAPS Users Guide Section 6 Transfers.doc, CAPS Users Guide Section 7 Transfers.doc, CAPS Users Guide Section 8 Administration.doc, CAPS Users Guide Section 9 Reports.doc, CAPS Users Guide Section  10 Program Monitoring.doc, and CAPS Users Guide Section 11 Alerts.doc.
 
Please note:  All attachments will be available until the closing date of this procurement, August 4.  At that time, the Department of General Services may close the posting on the Website.  It is advisable for Offerors to download these and all other documents prior to that date.
Question 27:  Definition of emergent transportation other than 911 and air ambulance.  (July 11, 2008)

Answer 27:  All modes of emergency transportation are covered. 
Question 28:  Under the 60 day limit for homecare it speaks to equipment and services.  Please clarify on how that counts towards the homecare limit?  (July 11, 2008)
Answer 28:  As the Department interprets the question, the reference to equipment and various services  is a general description of what the benefit should or can include for the 60 visits  allocated, if medically necessary.  The Department is not suggesting that the Offeror should impose a particular limit on the type of equipment or services unless it is customary for the health plan to define the benefit in that manner.
Question 29:  The RFP mentions the development of a data warehouse that will require us to switch from annual and quarterly reports to monthly encounter submissions.  Is there an estimated date that the warehouse will be up?  They also mention specific file formats for 837 submissions but we have not located the formats in any of the documents.  Are these formats currently available or do they have a date when they will be available?  (July 11, 2008)
Answer 29:  The CAPS Data Warehouse go-live date is estimated for January 2009 for existing contractors who may be awarded a contract under the new procurement.  If an Offeror who does not currently have a contract with CHIP is awarded a contract under this procurement, that contractor would be expected to create reports on an ad hoc basis until such time as the Department approves it through its readiness review process and deems data warehouse file transmission as acceptable from a data integrity standpoint.  This process could take approximately six months.
 

Specific file formats are available and have been uploaded.  The following files are Excel and Word documents.  All are available at:

 http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/GeneralEdit.aspx?SID=INS%20CHIP%202008-4.
· 837 Dental
· 837 Institutional 
· 837 Professional 
· HCPI Health Care Provider Information File Specification.xls
· NCPDP 5(1).1 Companion Guides
Question 30:  On page number 107 of the RFP (120 of the adobe document) they mention that 'The NCPDP 5.1 File is the mechanism for electronically transmitting all drug information from the adultBasic contractors to the Department.’  Is it safe to assume that the same format would apply for CHIP contractors?  (July 11, 2008)

Answer 30:  Yes this applies to CHIP.  The reference to the adultBasic program is in error.
Question 31:  Based on the RFP requirements of notification of pregnancy, we have some questions that require clarification.  If an enrollee becomes pregnant and the parent does not follow-up with the appropriate Medicaid department to determine eligibility; what is the responsibility of the MCO?  Do we terminate them from the CHIP program?  Does the MCO need to re-qualify them?  Is it up to MCO to make sure or keep following up to make sure they go to DPW?   (July 11, 2008)

Answer 31:  Answer 31:   If the enrollee is referred to a County Assistance Office (CAO) as possibly eligible for Medicaid, the CHIP contractor will have already provided a future termination date to the enrollee.  The CHIP and adultBasic Processing System (CAPS) will automatically terminate the child on that date.  The letter informing the head of household of the termination from CHIP and referral to Medicaid also provides contact information at the local CAO.  It is up to the enrollee to be responsive to the CAO so that an eligibility determination can be made.  If they are denied at the CAO for not providing requested information, they are no longer eligible for CHIP.  It is not the responsibility of the contractor to ensure or to follow up with either the enrollee or the CAO once the contractor is certain a referral was successfully completed.  However, there have been instances in the past when, for whatever reason, a referral did not make it to its intended destination and a request is generated to resend the referral, which will be the responsibility of the CHIP contractor.  On the other hand, if the enrollee is denied by Medicaid for high income, the CAO will return the enrollee's case to the contractor to be redetermined for CHIP eligibility. 
Question 32:  Appendix F, pg. 34, states that: Preparation of the Disadvantaged Business Submittal 

Offerors should prepare the Disadvantaged Business Submittal according to the directions in the RFP at Part II, Section II-10.  Evaluation of the Disadvantaged Business Submittal will be as described in Part III, Section III-4.C.  As a reminder, this submittal should be sealed separately from the technical submittal and the cost submittal. 

Question:  Can you please provide Part III, Section C?  We have not been able to locate it in the RFP.  (July 11, 2008)
Answer 32:  Appendix F, page 34 (Preparation of the Disadvantaged Business Submittal) should have stated, “Offerors should prepare the Disadvantaged Business Submittal according to the directions in the RFP at Part II, Section II-10.  Evaluation of the Disadvantaged Business Submittal will be as described in Part III, Section III-4.B.  As a reminder, this submittal should be sealed separately from the technical submittal and the cost submittal.”  The information in question is found on page 47 of the RFP.  There is no Part III, Section II-4.C.  The Department apologizes for this error.
Question 33:  Under the "Training (General)" section (RFP, pg 20, and Response Template, pg 4), we are requested to recommend "training of the Department's personnel."  Can the PID please provide clarification?  Are there any specific areas the PID had in mind?  (July 11, 2008)
Stated differently:  Page 20 - Part II-5 Training (General)

Are you interested in training guidelines for CHIP enrollment staff or the training guidelines for any department that would handle any aspect of CHIP, i.e. claims processing, membership and billing, etc.?  Or are you referring to training that the Department would provide to the Offeror if selected?

Also, in the 2nd paragraph when you say Department, we assume you are referring to the staff at the Insurance Department.  Is this correct?  (July 11, 2008)
Answer 33:  Under “Training (General),” Section II-5 of the RFP (and page 4 of Appendix F, the RFP Response Template), “the Department” refers to the Pennsylvania Insurance Department.  The Department is primarily interested in the proposed training of the Offerors’ personnel in areas such as, but not limited to, fraud detection and prevention services, call center staff, data entry personnel, eligibility workers, etc.  If the Offeror deems it appropriate, it may propose recommended training it would provide to Department personnel, and may indicate so in its response.  For example, the Offeror may view it as appropriate for the Department to observe or participate in its training of fraud detection and prevention services personnel.  The department is not suggesting that the Offeror must provide any particular training to department employees.

Question 34:  Can you please confirm that the rating period for the first year of this contract should be 12/1/08 through 11/30/09?  (July 11, 2008)
Answer 34:  Yes, the anticipated rating period is 12/1/08 through 11/30/09.
Question 35:  Page 68 - Drug and Alcohol Abuse Treatment - the prior contract benefit was treatment for 7 days per year with 4 lifetime max.  The current RFP states 7 days per admission (unlimited).  Is this change correct?  (July 11, 2008)

Answer 35:  There are no lifetime maximums for drug and alcohol treatment.
Question 36:  In the response template; Section A.4.d states "Describe the manner in which written materials are shared with enrollees according to preferences indicated in CAPS.”
Currently, it is our understanding the materials must be made available in English and Spanish.  Is the PID mandating the materials be produced in any other foreign languages or in Braille?  (July 14, 2008)

Answer 36:  All printed material should be available in English and Spanish.  If Spanish is the preferred language listed for the family in the CHIP and adultBasic Processing System (CAPS), all correspondence to the family must be in Spanish.  The Department is not mandating that materials be produced in any other foreign languages or Braille, but the Department does require all Offerors to respond to Appendix F, RFP Response Template, A.4.d., by providing a description of the manner in which written materials are shared with enrollees according to the preference indicated in CAPS and A.4.3. with a description of how the Offeror will accommodate the visually impaired with regard to written correspondence.
Question 37:  In the 2008 CHIP RFP, we noted that the PID showed separate categories of benefits relative to prosthetics, orthotics and DME.  Further, only the DME category had an indicator stating that the contractors can establish a limit.  Is the PID stating that no limitation can be placed on prosthetics or orthotics?  In the last RFP we have a combined $5000 limit for prosthetics, orthotics and DME.  It does not appear that this will be allowed based on this RFP.  Can you confirm?  (July 14, 2008)

Answer 37:  Limits can be applied to these benefits if it is customary to do so within the health plan.  If the limit combines prosthetics and orthotics under DME, please note that within the context of your response to DME.
 
Question 38:  Is "Well Child visit" synonymous with "Well Baby Visits"?  (July 14, 2008)
Answer 38:  Yes. The federal regulation says that a State may not impose co-payments, deductibles, coinsurance, or other cost sharing with respect to the well-baby and well-child care services covered under the State plan.
Question 39:  On page 9 of the RFP, it states, "After a contract is executed, however, the successful proposals are considered a public record under Section 106 of the Commonwealth Procurement Code, 62 Pa. C.S. § 106 and the Right-to Know Law, 65 P.S. § 66.1-66.9 and 65 P.S. §§ 67.101, et seq., and therefore may be subject to disclosure."  Our understanding of the new amended Right-To-Know Law is that both successful and unsuccessful proposals will be considered as part of the public record.  Please advise.

Also, can the PID specifically identify for Offerors whether there are any portions of a proposal that previously would not have been disclosed, but now are subject to disclosure under the amended Right-To-Know Law.  (July 14, 2008)
Answer 39:  Until January 1, 2009, unsuccessful proposals submitted in response to a request for proposals relating to contracts executed before January 1, 2009, may be exempt from public records disclosure under 62 Pa.C.S. § 106(b). However, commencing January 1, 2009, all proposal submissions, regardless of when they were made, may be subject to disclosure in response to a request for public records made under the Pennsylvania Right-to-Know-Law, 65 P.S. § 67.101, et seq., after the award of the contract or the cancellation of this solicitation.  In response to the request that PID specifically identify for Offerors whether there are any portions of a proposal that previously would not have been disclosed, but now are subject to disclosure under the amended Right-To-Know Law, Offerors should anticipate that after January 1, 2009 all documents submitted in response to an RFP will be public documents.
 

To assert claims of confidentiality as to confidential proprietary information or trade secrets against any right-to-know requests submitted before January 1, 2009, the procedure remains as it is currently.  However, to assert claims of confidentiality as to confidential proprietary information or trade secrets against any right-to-know requests submitted after January 1, 2009, the Offeror must: 1) label confidential proprietary information or trade secrets materials; 2) submit a signed statement to that effect with the submission, in accordance with 65 P.S. § 67.707(b); and 3) provide a redacted version of its proposal that removes material asserted to be confidential propriety or trade secret information.  Financial capability information submitted in response to Part II, Section II-7 will continue (after the new law takes effect) to be exempt from public records disclosure under 65 P.S. § 708(b)(26).            
 
 
Question 40:  Section E-4 Certified Registered Nurse Practitioner as a PCP/Medical Home.

Can you clarify the PID's intent relative to CRNPs.  If a contractor allows a CRNP to be employed by a physician and perform services under that physician, does that meet the intent of Sections E.4, E.4.a; E.4.b; and E.5.  Or do contractors need to allow "independent" stand-alone CRNPs (as long as credentialing requirements are met) be part of the provider network for CHIP purposes?  (July 14, 2008)
Answer 40:  The intention is to encourage the use of more CRNPs within the full scope of practice permitted by law.  This is part of the Governor's Prescription for Pennsylvania initiative and is addressed in Act 48 of 2007.  It is the policy of the Department to encourage more use of CRNPs generally, especially in areas where PCPs are in short supply, including CRNP nurse managed programs.
Question 41:  What would be the age max on a well child visit?  Do we follow standard medical coding of up to age 11 considered child, age 12 to 17 would be considered adolescent, if so no member liability up to and including age 11?

Answer 41:  Please refer to the federal regulations at 42 CFR §457.10 (defining a CHIP child as an individual under the age of 19) and §457.520 (prohibition against cost-sharing for well-baby and well-child care services).  Well-baby and well-child care services means regular or preventive diagnostic and treatment services necessary to ensure the health of babies, children, and adolescents as defined by the state.  So, if an individual is enrolled in Free or Low-cost CHIP, there is no maximum age and there will be no cost sharing for well-baby and well-child care services. 

Question 42:  In preparing the Cost Submittal are responders able to include costs related to Cover All Kids outreach efforts to ask for an additional two percent to cover administrative expenses?  This option was made available in the last rate submission.  If so, what specific time period should be included re: CAK outreach efforts and what specific documentation would need to be provided in addition to standard RCS?  (July 15, 2008)
Stated differently:   In reference to House Bill 2699 of 2006, Act 136, Section 2311(b)(3), which states a contract can receive an additional 2% for administrative costs if they prove the need by expanded outreach, systems or operational changes:  Please clarify what additional support is needed to receive the additional 2% for administrative costs.  (July 17, 2008)

Answer 42:   For purposes of evaluating any claim for administrative expenses greater than 10%, the contractor must provide “documented evidence” of administrative expenses ( i.e., proof of expenses already expended – list the additional expenses and dates these were expended) incurred during the calendar year 2007.  The list of expenses must include expenses only for “purposes of expanded outreach and systems and operational changes” that are “reasonable and necessary” – i.e., that have a worthwhile and positive effect for the effort expended.
Follow-up Question to #42:  The answer to question #42 indicates that we are to list additional expenses incurred during the calendar year 2007.  Can you please confirm that you want us to calculate expanded outreach and systems operational changes specific to calendar year 2007?  We ask because this is a different time period than what is being used throughout the Cost section to prepare our rates which is noted on page 28 of the RFP (June 1, 2007 to May 31, 2008)
Answer to Follow-up Question #42:  You are correct. The expenses listed must be incurred during the calendar year 2007.
Question 43:  Relative to the Disadvantage Business Information that the PID is requesting; is there a specific form that should be used and if so, where is that located.  Most potential contractors in and of themselves would not fall into the noted categories.  Is the PID just looking for a letter indicating whether there are in such entities in a contractor’s area and if that contractor plans to sub-contract any such work to these entities?

Answer 43:  There is no specific form for this process.  See Section II-10 of the RFP for details.  More information on the Disadvantaged Business Progam is available through the Department of General Services website at http://www.portal.state.pa.us/portal/server.pt?open=512&objID=1360&&SortOrder=3&level=3&parentid=1358&css=L3&mode=2&cached=true.

Question 44:  Regarding the well baby and child visits, we understand that a co-pay can not be applied to the low income tiers.  However, if an immunization is also provided during a "normal" well baby or well child visit, can a co-pay be applied to those other services.  (July 16, 2008)
Answer 44:  An immunization is a well-baby/well-child service.  See 40 P.S. §991.2311 (L)(6)(i).  In the scenario described above, no co-payment would be collected if the child is enrolled in the Free or Low-Cost components of CHIP.  Well-baby and well-child services are defined as:

 

(1)   
All healthy newborn physician visits, including routine screening, whether provided on an inpatient or outpatient basis.

(2)  
Routine physical examinations as recommended and updated by the American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) “Guidelines for Health Supervision III” and described in “Bright Futures: Guidelines for Health Supervision of Infants, Children and Adolescents.”

(3)  
Laboratory tests associated with the well-baby and well-child routine physical examinations as described in 2 above.

(4)  
Immunizations and related office visits as recommended and updated by the Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices (ACIP).

(5) 
Routine preventive and diagnostic dental services (such as oral examinations, prophylaxis, and topical fluoride applications, sealants, and x-rays) as described in the most recent guidelines issued by the American Academy of Pediatric Dentistry (AAPD).
(6)  
Routine preventive and diagnostic vision services.

See 42 CFR 457.520 and Policy Manual 8.3.1.

 

Question 45:  RFP Section I-12 (Proposals) states the Offerors should submit two (2) paper copies of the Disadvantaged Business Submittal.  However, section II-10 (Disadvantaged Business Submittal) A. Disadvantaged Business Information #4 states "The Offeror is required to submit only one copy of its Disadvantaged Business Submittal......". Can you please confirm how many paper copies are needed for the Disadvantage Business proposal?  (July 16, 2008)
Answer 45:  Please follow the directions outlined in Section I-12 (Proposals) of the RFP and submit two (2) paper copies of the Disadvantaged Business proposal.  The Department apologizes for the confusion created by the discrepancy.
 
Please also refer to question and answer #8 for clarification of submission of the individual portions of the Offeror’s proposal on a CD or flash drive.
Question 46:  RFP Page 67 section r, Home health care does not define how the services are counted in the mandated benefit of 60/year (i.e. is PT one, OT two, Nursing three, HHA for bathing four, respiratory vendor for O2 delivery five, etc?)  What if all 5 happen on one visit -- was it just "one" then?   (July 16, 2008)
Answer 46:  A visit should be counted as a visit regardless of whether it occurred simultaneously with others.  Delivery of DME and other supplies should not be counted towards visit utilization even if initial set up is involved.  

 

Question 47:  RFP Page 69 - section w, we require specific definition from the department for "emergency services.”  Is it only 911 calls?  What about transportation between facilities/providers?  (July 16, 2008)
Answer 47:   As defined in the RFP, emergency service/emergency medical condition is as defined in section 2102 of Act 68.  40 P.S. §991.2102.  See also 40 P.S. §991.2116. Emergency services are not confined solely to 911 calls.  Transportation between facilities/providers is covered if medically necessary, and not solely for convenience.  Please also see Question and Answer 27 where the Department explained that all modes of emergency transportation are covered.
Question 48:  RFP Page 66 - With regards to abortions, the RFP indicates that the service will be covered if "a physician has certified that the abortion is necessary to save the life of the mother...."  Our question is what is the Department looking for as far as certification is concerned?  Does the Department have a particular form that they want used?  (July 16, 2008)
 
Answer 48:  The Department does not have a particular form.  The Certification must demonstrate that the physician has determined, within the physician’s best clinical judgment, as required by 18 PA. C.S. §3204, that the abortion is medically necessary to save the life of the mother. 
Question 49:  RFP Page 69 - Emergency, preventive, and routine hearing care:  This includes the cost of examinations and hearing devices (one (1) device every two (2) years).  Clarification is requested with regards to the limitation of "one device every two years" does that mean one device per ear? If I get a device for my right ear, is that the end o f the benefit for two years? Or am I allowed one device for my right ear every two years and one for my left ear every two years?  (July 16, 2008)
 Answer 49:  The benefit includes one device for each ear every two years if the child has hearing loss in both ears.  This means the child is allowed one device for the right ear every two years and one device for the left ear every two years.
Question 50:  RFP Page 68 - Mental Health Services:  Clarification is requested as to whether or not specialist’s co-pays (if applicable) apply for mental health visits.  (July 16, 2008)
 Answer 50:  Specialists’ co-payments (if applicable) apply for mental health and substance abuse visits for the full-cost component of CHIP only, as follows:

Outpatient


$25


Inpatient


$ 0


Partial Hospitalization
$ 0

There are no co-payments for mental health or substance abuse treatments for the free and low-cost components of CHIP.

Question 51:  RFP Page 69/70 – We are seeking clarification with regards to the Department's requirements for repair and/or replacement of Durable Medical Equipment, Prosthetics Appliances, Orthotic Devices and Hearing Aids.  (July 16, 2008)
Answer 51:  An Offeror should apply its normal policy for repair and replacement of Durable Medical Equipment, prosthetic appliances, orthotic devices, and hearing aids.  The Offeror must have a policy that allows for repair and replacement and the Offeror must take into consideration the growth of the child, at a minimum, in its policy for the repair and replacement of these items.

Question 52:  The current RFP, page 68, indicates that for outpatient mental health services the limit is 50 visits per year.  The previous RFP, No. 2004 CHIP 05 page 64, indicated that outpatient mental health services were limited to up to fifty (50) visits per year and could be exchanged for inpatient hospital days.  

Clarification is sought with regards to the removal of the exchange.  It appears that the only exchange currently available under Mental Health Services is for partial hospitalization (one inpatient day may be exchanged for two days of partial hospitalization).  (July 16, 2008)
Answer 52:  The mental health exchange rate was changed to reflect the more common exchange of inpatient days for partial hospitalization.
Question 53:  Page 21, II-9 - Modifications of the task descriptions are permitted; however, reasons for changes should be fully explained. Indicate the number of person hours allocated to each task. Include a Program Evaluation and Review Technique (PERT) or similar type display, time related, showing each event. If more than one approach is apparent, comment on why you chose this approach.  Can you please provide additional clarification as to what you are looking for in this response?  (July 16, 2008)
Answer 53:  Section II-9 of the RFP is repeated in its entirety for clarity in the Department’s response:
 
II-9.     Work Statement.  
 
Describe in narrative form your technical plan for accomplishing the work.  Please use the RFP Response Template, Appendix F, as a guide in preparation of your proposal.  The RFP Response Template is intended to guide you in describing your organization’s ability to perform the functions described in this RFP and to solicit alternative approaches that still meet the intent of the controlling statutes.  Each of the questions refers back to a specific requirement in either Part II or Part IV of the RFP.  Offerors are cautioned not to provide more documentation than necessary to demonstrate their ability to meet the work statement described in Part IV.  
 
Use the task descriptions in Part IV of this RFP as your reference point.  Modifications of the task descriptions are permitted; however, reasons for changes should be fully explained.  Indicate the number of person hours allocated to each task.  Include a Program Evaluation and Review Technique (PERT) or similar type display, time related, showing each event.  If more than one approach is apparent, comment on why you chose this approach.
 
The Department is looking for a narrative description of the Offeror’s proposal for accomplishing the work, in addition to a graphical presentation of the Offeror’s timeliness standards as they relate to the Tasks outlined in Section IV of the RFP.  Examples include but are not limited to data entry of applications, follow up when an application is incomplete, screening for Medicaid eligibility, follow up related to nondesignation of a primary care provider, generation of enrollment cards, depositing fee payments as part of the premium collection process, cross matches, and other required activities as described in this section of the RFP.  
Question 54:  Section IV -2.  A page 51 of the RFP states, “Successful Offerors must "Provide translation services for children or parents needing them to communicate with a healthcare provider". Can this be clarified ? We do provide translation services for calls placed to our customer service unit for assistance. We are able to identify for members at which providers interpretation services are available. Does this service meet the expected criteria.? (July 16, 2008)
 
Answer 54:  Offerors are expected to provide translation services for calls placed to its customer service unit and to facilitate translation services where necessary.  This requirement includes identification of providers where interpretation services are available.  However, a successful Offeror is also required to provide assistance establishing translation services if an enrollee is unable to communicate with a healthcare provider and said healthcare provider has no interpretation services available.
 
Question 55:  Section I-26 of the RFP identifies contract terms as 3 years with an option of two (2) one-year extensions. Section II-11 identifies that for NEW  CONTRACTORS, rates will apply for the first two )(2) years of the program and rates for the third and the two (2) extension years may be subject to review and adjustment where appropriate. Please clarify. (July 16, 2008)
 

Answer 55:  Section I-26 refers to the term of the contract.  The term is 3 years and the Department may exercise its option to extend the contract for two (2) one-year extensions.  This term applies to all successful Offerors who execute a contract under this procurement.  
 
Section II-11 refers to the Cost Submittal section and its relationship to the premium rate development.  Current contractors’ rates are subject to review and adjustment, where appropriate, on an annual basis.  For new contractors, a rate will be developed based upon the information submitted in the Cost Submittal and that rate shall apply for the first two years of the program to allow for utilization experience.  Rates for the third year and two (2) one-year extensions (if the Department exercises its extension options) may be subject to yearly review and adjustment, where appropriate.
Question 56:  Eligibility of newborn's - Can the department clarify a CHIP contractors  obligation for newborn care ?  Can an application be submitted for an unborn child ? If so and income eligibility is met, is the CHIP contractor responsible for all health care cost from date of birth ? If eligibility is established on the first day of the month subsequent to determining eligibility would coverage be retroactive back to date of birth ?  (July 16, 2008)
 
Answer 56:   Even though federal regulations at 42 CFR 457.10 define a child as an individual under the age of 19 including the period from conception to birth, 457.320 allows the state to adopt eligibility standards related to age. Pennsylvania chose to cover children from birth to the age of 19 as reflected in our CHIP State Plan Sections 2.1 A. and 4.1.2. Based on this decision, an unborn child is not counted as a household member in CHIP.  However, an unborn child is counted as a household member under Medicaid eligibility rules.   42 CFR 457.30 requires the state to have screening procedures to identify any applicant or enrollee who would be potentially eligible for Medicaid and to facilitate the transfer to the Medicaid agency if potentially eligible.  Because a person must be enrolled wherever she is eligible, i.e., CHIP or Medicaid, the CHIP contractor must  refer her case to Medicaid for an eligibility determination.  If it is determined the child is not eligible for Medicaid, CHIP coverage should begin the first of the month following an eligibility determination.  
 

Under state law, the mother’s insurance covers a newborn child for 31 days following birth.  If the mother is insured through CHIP at the point of delivery, the CHIP contractor would be responsible for all healthcare costs for the newborn from the date of birth.  
 

A parent or guardian may apply for CHIP immediately following the birth of the child.
 

Question 57:  Enrollment by age. Does the department have available statistics as to the current CHIP enrollment by age ? 0-1, 1-6- 6-13, 13-19. ?   (July 16, 2008)
 
Answer 57:  The specific age breakouts requested are not readily available and would require ad hoc reporting by the contractors.  However, the Department does have enrollment by age demographics for July 2008 in the following age breakouts:  0-1, 1-5, 6-12, 13-18, and 19 (the last month of CHIP enrollment).  Please see the attached document entitled “CHIP Enrollment Age by County July 2008.”  
Question 58:  Current contractor premiums- It would appear that contractors are offering premiums for the low cost and full cost programs lower than rates as filed . What justification for lowering the premiums is required by the department ? Can the free  program rates be offered at rates lower than justified by premium filings ? (July 16, 2008)
 

Answer 58:  The Department engages in an actuarially sound and adequate review of utilization experience as part of its rate development analysis.  The rate is designed to provide the contractor with a prospectively determined monthly amount sufficient to meet the In-Plan Service work statement described in Part IV of the RFP.  Some contractors do opt to lower the monthly premiums to make CHIP coverage more affordable to the families they serve; this is permitted.  The Department neither reviews nor approves the subsidization of rates by the companies that propose them. 
Question 59:  In the current contract term, we provide service to our some members through a PPO product, which was reviewed and approved with some modifications to the process by the Department.  Can we continue to provide services to members through our current PPO product during the contract term covered by this RFP?  (July 17, 2008)
Answer 59:  No.  As stated in the RFP at  Section I-1, Purpose, the Department intends to fund all reasonable proposals that demonstrate cost effectiveness, utilize a managed care plan delivery system and is licensed by the Commonwealth, are within the Department’s budgetary constraints, and provide sufficient detail that the Offeror’s provider network is sufficient to provide access to care and the Offeror is capable of meeting the requirements specified within the RFP.  The Department is requiring utilization of a managed care delivery system, e.g., a gatekeeper PPO, health maintenance organization, Point of Service product, etc., under the contract term covered by this RFP.  Note:  See CHIP RFP Addendum – DGS Website – UPDATED 08‑06-08 PM.
Question 60:  Are we required to copy all appendices/attachments onto a CD or Flashdrive?  (July 17, 2008)
Answer 60:  Yes, all appendices and attachments must be included on the CD or Flash Drive.  Please refer to section I-12 (Proposals) of the RFP, on page 6.  In addition to the paper copies of the proposal, Offerors shall submit two complete and exact copies (keeping the Technical, Cost, and Disadvantaged Business Submittals separate), along with all requested documents on a CD-ROM OR Flash Drive in Microsoft Office or Microsoft Office-compatible format.  Please also refer to Question and Answer # 8 for more information.

Question 61:  If an offerer does not currently have a Spanish link to the CHIP state site or Spanish information on their own site, when is the deadline for implementation?  (July 17, 2008)
Answer 61:  No deadline for development is mandated in the RFP.  Please refer to Appendix F, RFP Response Template, section A.3 on page 8.  Part of the Offeror’s required response includes the timeframe for development of the CHIP-specific information in English and Spanish on its Website and link to the Department’s Website.  The minimum requirements to be included on the Website are included in this section.
Question 62:  Could you please clarify the questions relating to Training in Appendix F RFP Response Template, Tab 5.  What is the difference between question 5a and question 5b?  Does question 5b refer to training we would provide to the Department?  (July 17, 2008)
Answer 62:  Tab 5a asks the Offeror to describe the training it will provide for  its own staff.  Tab 5b asks the Offeror to describe any training it might deem appropriate for the Pennsylvania Insurance Department’s personnel.  Please refer to the questions and answer posted under Question 33 from July 11, 2008, for further information. 
Question 63:  It appears that the non-collusion affidavit Word document is password protected.  It does not allow us to type in information in the blanks. Can you load a non-password protected version of this document to the appropriate site for contractors use.  Also, the lobbying document is only provided in a PDF format.  Can that be converted to a non-password protected Word document also.  (July 18, 2008)
Answer 63:  A non-password protected version of the Noncollusion Affidavit (Appendix E to the RFP) is not available.  The Offeror will need to print the document in order to use it.  The Department recognizes that field designations (“title”, “name of firm”, and “name of purchasing agency”) will print when handled in this manner.  It is acceptable for the Offeror to use correction fluid to remove these fields and make a photocopy of the blank form.  Each Offeror must complete and sign the form for use in its proposal.
 
The Lobby Certification and Disclosure, Management Directive 305.16, available as part of Appendix H, the RFP Documentation Electronic Library, is only available in a PDF format.  Again, Offerors are instructed to print off the form for hardcopy use.  Each Offeror must complete and sign the form for use in its proposal.
Question 64:  An Offeror does not wish to submit a Disadvantaged Business Submittal, is there anything the Offeror needs to submit for that portion (e.g. a statement that we do not wish to submit one)?  (July 17, 2008)
Answer 64:  An Offeror is not required to submit a Disadvantaged Business Submittal or an explanation for its option not to include a Submittal.  Offerors are reminded, however, that the Disadvantaged Business Participation is one of the criteria for selection as listed in the RFP under Section III-4 on page 47.

Question 65:  Where does the Insurance Department expect to see the Proposal Cover Sheet?  Should it be placed on the cover of the binder marked as the original?  Or can it appear inside the binder as the first page of the contents?  (July 17, 2008)
Stated differently:  We are unclear on the correct usage of the Proposal Cover Sheet.  Are we to provide one Proposal Cover Sheet that is external to the three sealed Submittals (Technical, Disadvantaged Business, and Cost)?  Or, should the Proposal Cover Sheet be placed either on the outside or inside of the every binder that is submitted?  (July 18, 2008)

Answer 65: Please see the RFP at Section I-12 (Proposals).  An official authorized to bind the Offeror to its provisions must sign the proposal.  If the official signs the Proposal Cover Sheet (Appendix C to this RFP) and the Proposal Cover Sheet is attached to the Offeror’s   proposal, the requirement will be met.  Whether the proposal cover sheet is on the front of the Technical Submittal binder marked original or inside the binder, it should be in an obvious location for the evaluation committee.  If the Offeror opts to make copies of the Proposal Cover Sheet for all sections (and copies) of its  proposal, it would be helpful if the original is signed in blue ink.
Question 66:  Under the section Administrative Functions, the actual RFP notes that the functions listed (e.g. prior auth, concurrent review) must be assigned to a Pennsylvania licensed physician, CRNP, registered nurse, or Physician's Assistant with the experience necessary for the function.  Would this also include licensed social workers, and PHD psychologists for the behavioral health administrative functions performed on behalf of CHIP members?  The way it is written, it appears to be limited to the   professionals currently listed in that section.  (July 17, 2008)
Answer 66:   The reference to Administrative Functions was specific to medical services.  However, it is the expectation of the Department that similar guidelines for administrative functions would be applicable to mental health and substance abuse services based on the types of mental health professionals that would be the equivalent of the administrative personnel noted for medical services. 

Question 67:  Please explain the difference between the organization charts for "Administration of the CHIP Program" (Tab 2) and "Unit/Personnel that support this project" (Tab 4) and advise to what level of management and staff we must detail these charts.  (July 17, 2008)
Answer 67:  The question appears to refer to Appendix F, RFP Response Template.  Tab 2 of Appendix F requires the Offeror to provide a Management Summary (narrative description), not to exceed three pages, which should include an organizational chart for administration of the CHIP program.  Tab 4e. (Personnel) requires a copy of the organizational chart.  The level of management and staff that must be detailed is described in Tab 4.e: “Demonstrate that all of the required functions listed in the work statement in Part IV of the RFP are contained within the Offeror’s organization or within a subcontractor’s organization.  
 
The Offeror may include the same organization chart for both requirements, if appropriate.  If the Offeror refers to the organization chart in another section of its proposal, it must do so by providing the exact page number where it can be found by the evaluators. 
 
Please also see question 4 and the Department’s Response from July 8, 2008, for information on the requirements of Tab 4 (Personnel).
Question 68:  For the Management Summary tab (Page 2 of the Response Template), we are required to provide "a description of the Offeror's managed care delivery system."  Please clarify how the PID defines "delivery system."  (July 17, 2008)
Answer 68:  As stated in the RFP at Section I-1, Purpose, the Department intends to fund all reasonable proposals that demonstrate cost effectiveness, utilize a managed care plan delivery system and is licensed by the Commonwealth, are within the Department’s budgetary constraints, and provide sufficient detail that the Offeror’s provider network is sufficient to provide access to care and the Offeror is capable of meeting the requirements specified within the RFP.  By asking for a description of the Offeror’s managed care delivery system, the Department is asking for a description of the licensed product through which the Offeror proposes to offer services to CHIP enrollees, e.g., a gatekeeper PPO, health maintenance organization, or other type of managed care product.
Question 69:  Please furnish a bid package, including specifications and instructions.  Also, what time is our proposal due?

 

Answer 69:  Please refer to Section I-30 of the RFP which states, “This RFP is being made available by electronic means.”  This RFP is not available in hardcopy format and copies will be not be furnished.  As stated in the RFP Cover Letter, “All proposals must be received no later than 10:00 a.m. on August 4, 2008…”
Question 70:  Questions related to E.1.d.  (page 24 of Appendix F)  Can you please clarify the term 'advanced nurse practitioner'?  Does this profession differ from a certified registered nurse practitioner (CRNP) and if so, how?  
When we provide the percent of our network that comprises the non-physician health care providers, is it for all non-physician provider types (to include providers such as physical therapists, chiropractors,etc.), or only those listed within the question (nurses, certified registered nurse practitioners, etc.)  (July 17, 2008)
Answer 70:  For the purpose of clarity in the Department’s response, E.1.d. is repeated here.
 

E.1.d  Describe your organization’s policy to ensure that all licensed health care providers – including nurses, certified registered nurse practitioners, advanced nurse practitioners, midwives, physician assistants, dental hygienists, and expanded function dental assistants can practice to the fullest extent of their education and training.  Provide the percent of your network that comprises these non-physician health care providers.
 

As defined in the RFP, a Certified Registered Nurse Practitioner (CRNP) is a registered nurse licensed in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania who is certified by the State Board of Nursing as a CRNP in a particular clinical specialty area.

Advanced nurse practitioners could include other titles such as Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetist (CRNA), Clinical Nurse Specialist (CNS), Nurse Practitioner (NP), or  Licensed Nurse-Midwife.

Question E.1.d. is attempting to elicit two pieces of information from proposed Offerors.  First, describe your organization’s policy to ensure that all licensed health care providers can practice to the fullest extent of their education and training. This policy would include all providers, including physical therapists, chiropractors, etc.  
 

The second item that an Offeror is required to provide is “the percent of your network that comprises these non-physician health care providers.”  For the percentage, you should provide information on the specifically listed occupations -  namely nurses, certified registered nurse practitioners, advanced nurse practitioners, midwives, physician assistants, dental hygienists, and expanded function dental assistants.  
 

The Offeror should refer to Section I-5 of the RFP, Problem Statement, on page 3.  Under Prescription for Pennsylvania, the RFP specifically mentions that one important principle/strategy of the Prescription for Pennsylvania is increasing access to quality services through the utilization of advanced practice nurses, physician assistants, and dental hygienists where appropriate and cost effective.  Question E.1.d. requires Offerors to describe its corporate policy for meeting this strategy.
 

Question 71:  The Children's Health Care Act identifies that no less than 84% of  the contract shall be used to provide health care services. The RFP page 38 identifies either 86% or 88% when considering the Administrative Expense 10% or 12% and Risk and Contingency of 2%. Please clarify.   (July 18, 2008)
Answer 71:  These provisions are as provided in law. Please see 40 P.S. §991.2311(b)(3),(4).
Question 72:  The department reserves the right to cap enrollment for any contractor in any service area top address budget constraints occasioned by the variation in rates among the programs contractors or as necessary, to mitigate financial risk. For calendar 07 can the department identify in which counties , if any, where carriers were effected by enrollment caps ? Is the aggregate state wide CHIP funding amount available ?  (July 18, 2008)
Answer 72:  In calendar year 2007, there were no counties where carriers were affected by enrollment caps.    CHIP funding is available statewide.  In the 2008-09 state fiscal year, approximately $359 million has been budgeted for CHIP benefits.
Question 73:  Has the department established a maximum limit of contractors to be selected for each county ?  (July 18, 2008)
Answer 73:  No.  The Department seeks to optimize consumer choice while providing sufficient access to care on a statewide basis.  The Department has reserved the sole right to select the number of successful Offerors in accordance with the requirements in the RFP, Department policies, and applicable laws.  The Department reserves the right to cap enrollment for any contractor in any service area to address budgetary constraints occasioned by the variation in rates among the program’s contractors, or as necessary to mitigate financial risk.
Question 74:  To assist in estimations of administrative expense we need to understand the opportunity for new enrollment.  Can the department provide new enrollment  new no cost enrollment, new low cost enrollment and new full cost enrollment by county ?  (July 18, 2008)
Answer 74:  New enrollment by county is demonstrated in the chart entitled “New CHIP Enrollees by County – July 2008.xls.”  Offerors may locate this chart by reviewing the RFP’s attached documents which are available at http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/GeneralEdit.aspx?SID=INS%20CHIP%202008-4. 
The chart shows the breakout of July’s new enrollment by county for certain components of CHIP:   Free (no-cost), Low-Cost 1 (200-250% of FPL), Low-cost 2 (>250%-275% of FPL), and Low-Cost 3 (>275%-300% of FPL). Breakout by county for new enrollment for the Full-Cost component of CHIP is not available.  
In July 2008, there were  1,476 total (not just new) enrollees in the Full-Cost component of CHIP.  That, combined with total  enrollments in the other components of CHIP, provided a grand total of 174,173 enrollees in July 2008.  Total enrollment by county is available at any time on the CHIP Website at http://www.chipcoverspakids.com/interior.php?subPage=Partners_Facts. 
Question 75:  Page 28 of appendix F G.1.a requests a description of quality standards established for primary care physicians. The last item identifies "Telephone Service". Please  clarify what is anticipated  for this topic. 
Answer 75:  The Offeror must describe the quality standards it has established for its participating primary care physicians as they relate to telephone services.  If the Offeror has not established quality standards for telephone services, it should indicate “none” in the format provided for the response.
Question 76:  In reference to Tab 4 Personnel question c: "Provide the name(s), address(es), telephone number(s), and contact person(s) that can give references for the key administrative positions requested. Reference checks may be conducted of the Offeror’s administrator and the program manager."  Could you please specify what type of person you are looking for here (i.e. another client that has worked with such person, personal reference, internal reference, etc.)?

Answer 76:  The question appears to refer to Appendix F, RFP Response template, on page 3.  The Department requires the response to include contact persons(s) that can give references for the key administrative positions requested.  These references should be for the name of another client that has worked with the persons described in question C.  These should not be personal or internal references.
Question 77:  Document Reference:  RFP, Section IV-5A1, Section Heading Risk Protection for High Cost Cases, Page 94.  If an existing plan has a reinsurance contract with an attachment point/deductible greater than the $150,000 specified in the agreement, would they be deemed to be grandfathered in at the higher attachment point/deductible and not required to obtain reinsurance at the $150,000 level? (July 22, 2008)
Answer 77:  The Department will not grandfather your risk protection arrangement, but will evaluate your risk protection arrangement including the attachment point as part of the evaluation process.

Question 78:  Document Reference:  RFP, Section 2(b), Section heading Service Categories, Page 37.  Please clarify. Is a dollar value of the rebates in the cost information requested or are the rebates provided by the PBM being requested? (July 22, 2008)
Answer 78:  It appears this question relates to Section II-11, Cost Submittal, of the RFP.  Specifically, it appears it is related to the second bullet with the heading “Prescription Drugs” on page 37.   The paragraph is repeated in its entirety here for clarity:  “Prescription Drugs:  The anticipated unit cost should be the average cost per prescription for a special contract rate the Offeror has negotiated under a capitation agreement, net of any credit for rebates.”
 The cost information requests the total dollar value of the rebates received by the contractor. 
The unit cost = (Total cost of all prescription drugs less total rebates received by the contractor) divided by total number of scripts.  
Please note that detailed information of all the rebates on prescription drugs is requested on page 42 of the RFP.
 
Question 79:  Document Reference:  RFP, Definitions, Section Heading Prior Authorization Page x.  As the RFP usually refers to Act 68 as the source for the precise definition of common managed care terms as used by the Department, please confirm that the definition for “Prior Authorization” – which is a form of prospective utilization review – should be read to comply with the definition of “prospective utilization review” in Act 68 Section 2102.  (July 22, 2008)
Answer 79:  Yes.
Question 80:  Document Reference:  RFP, Section 1.31.F, Section Heading Termination or Expiration of Contract, page 14.  Does the requirement that, upon expiration of the contract, the contractor “provide services on a fee-for-service basis” for members whose conditions mandate that they continue a course of treatment with a specific provider mean that the contractor shall be reimbursed by the Department for all costs incurred in continuing such care? (July 22, 2008)
Answer 80:  Subject to compliance with the provisions of the RFP Section 1.31.A-E., the provision of 1.31.F means that in the specific situation where the enrollee is in a course of treatment for which a change in provider would be harmful, the contractor will be reimbursed by the Department for all reasonable costs for medically necessary care until that treatment is concluded or appropriate transfer of care can be arranged. 
Question 81:  Document Reference:  RFP, Section Number IV-4B3, Section Heading Record Retention and Availability, page 74.  There is an apparent inconsistency in the record retention periods specified in separate documents – for example, RFP IV-4.B.3 indicates retention for 5 years after the contract expires, while the Standard Terms and Conditions, Paragraph 15, specifies a contract plus 3-year period and the Business Associate Agreement indicates a contract plus 6-year period – which controls?  (July 22, 2008)
Answer 81:  The specific requirements of the RFP record retention period supersedes the general requirements of the Standard Terms and Conditions under the principle that the particular controls the general.  As for the Business Associate Agreement reference to a six year period, that is with particular reference to the information required under subsection (g) of the Agreement.  Consistent with the RFP’s requirement that the record retention be for “five (5) years from the expiration date of the contract period or as otherwise required by law”, and the HIPAA requirements set forth in 45 CFR §164.528 and 45 CFR §164.504, information necessary to provide an accounting of disclosures of protected health information must be maintained for six (6) years.
Question 82:  Document Reference:  Appendix F, Tab 6, Section Heading Financial Capability, Page 4.  Statutory Basis and Supplemental Investment Disclosures for years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 will be provided.  Does the state want audited financial statements for the prior also?  (July 22, 2008)
Answer 82:  It appears the question is asking if the Department wants audited financial statements for the prior YEAR.  While the RFP does not require prior year audited financial statements, the Department will accept audited financial statements from the prior year.
Question 83:  Document Reference:  Appendix F, Section Number Tab 5B, Section Heading Training, page 4.  Please clarify the Department's expectations for MCO training of Department staff.   (July 22, 2008)
Answer 83:  Please see questions and answers to numbers 33 and 62.
Question 84:  Document Reference:  Appendix F, Section Number Tab 3e, Section Heading Prior Experience, page 2.  Please confirm that an Offeror which holds a Pennsylvania HMO certificate or authority, but is not a federally qualified HMO, is eligible to submit a proposal so long as the Offeror meets the other program requirements.  (July 22, 2008)
Answer 84:  An Offeror that holds a Pennsylvania HMO Certificate of Authority, but is not a federally qualified HMO, is eligible to submit a proposal. 

Question 85:  Document Reference:  General, Appendix F, Section Heading Numbering, page __.  The numbering goes from A. Financial Standards” to “C. Performance Management and Reporting Requirements skipping B.  Will the Department be re-issuing Appendix F with corrected numbering?   (July 22, 2008)
Answer 85:  The question appears to refer to Tab 9, Work Statement, Section IV-5 Financial and Project Control, on page 32 of Appendix F, the RFP Response Template.  The Department does confirm that the RFP Response Template is accurate as written and there are no missing sections in Tab 9, Work Statement, of the RFP Response Template.  The questions in the RFP Response Template refer back to major headings in the RFP itself.  Section B  was not addressed in the RFP Response Template because no response is required from Offerors.  The Department will not be re-issuing Appendix F.
Question 86:  The confirmation certificate states the following: “Confirm that all correspondence will be provided to the applicant in Spanish if Spanish is the preferred language indicated in CAPS.” Our existing business process is to include tag lines in Spanish on both applicant and member correspondence rather than provide the correspondence in Spanish.  We do this for two reasons (1) we do not serve a large Spanish speaking population and (2) there is no standard report that we are aware of in CAPS that would enable us to identify an applicant’s primary language as Spanish.  To do this currently would be a manual process.  Is it acceptable for us to continue our protocol to provide tag lines in Spanish on all correspondence as acceptable to meeting this requirement?  (July 23, 2008)
Stated Differently:  How do they handle the requirement to have everything going to members translated into Spanish (if that is the member's documented preference).  The issues really come into play when you have template notices such as denial templates, etc., where "free text" is added and may not be easily translated.  (July 23, 2008)

Answer 86:  This request for proposal requires all information provided on an application to be entered into CAPS.  The Department will require the addition of a preferred language field on newly developed applications during this contract period.  Review and approval of these new applications will be part of the readiness review process.  The majority of current contractors already include a preferred language field on their applications and CAPS does capture this information.  The RFP, Section IV-3.A.4, Written Materials, includes a new requirement, “If Spanish is the preferred language listed for the family on CAPS, all correspondence to the family must be in Spanish.”  Accordingly, the continued use of your current protocol is not acceptable for meeting this requirement.  Correspondence includes anything that is in a letter format that refers specifically to enrollment, renewal, member coverage, premium payments, and changes in household size and income.  Optional information about healthy lifestyles, special events, and newsletters sent as a courtesy to members does not have to be translated into Spanish language.  

 

The applicant’s preferred language is a field in the Letter Generation File (LGF) specification.  In other words, the Department provides the language preference entered in CAPS to all contractors through the LGF.  The Department will work with successful Offerors on the implementation of this requirement.  Specifically, the Department will provide Spanish translations of all letters.  Contractors will be required to translate any unique contractor-related information included in the letters, and this unique information (tag lines, logos, etc.) must first be approved by the Department.  “Free text” is not used in these letters.

 

Please note:  Appendix F, Tab 9, IV-3.A.4.d. asks Offerors to describe the manner in which written materials are shared with enrollees according to the preference indicated in CAPS.  In the case of the Offeror above, you may indicate that you are not currently providing this service and address the steps you will take to meet the requirement.  Appendix G, Confirmation Certificate, requires Offerors to confirm that all correspondence will be provided to the applicant in Spanish if Spanish is the preferred language indicated in CAPS.  This confirmation is asking an Offeror to agree that it will implement this requirement, but it is not necessary for the Offeror to currently have it implemented.  In the event an Offeror is not willing to implement this requirement, the deviation should be noted on the Confirmation Certificate as described in that document.

 

Question 87:  Also regarding website requirements, please confirm that it text on web pages does not have be available in Spanish; instead specific materials such as the application, need to be made available in English and Spanish.  Is this a correct interpretation? 
Answer 87:  Text on a successful Offeror’s website must contain CHIP-specific information in English and Spanish, as required in the RFP at Section IV-3.A.3.  The Offeror may not simply provide printed materials in Spanish in lieu of meeting this requirement.  Appendix F, the RFP Response Template, Tab 9, Section A.3., requires Offerors to describe the CHIP-specific information on the Offeror’s Website and to include the timeframe for development of the CHIP-specific information in English and Spanish.
 
Question 88:  Page 18 of the RFP General Requirements Identifies that "Offerors should provide any other information thought to be relevant , but not applicable to the enumerated categories as an appendix to the proposal" . Page nine of the RFP I-16 identifies that the second binder may contain items such as addenda to the technical response. We are assuming that the second binder can contain addenda as well as other relevant information that may not be requested in the RFP. Please confirm. 

Answer 88:  Yes, the second binder may contain addenda as well as other relevant information that may not be requested in the RFP.  
Question 89:  In Appendix G "Confirmation Certificate" part IV  it states:  Confirm that the Offerer will not enter into any contracts or subcontracts, or utilize the services of any contractor, unless the contractor or subcontractor complies with Commonwealth Management  Directives 215.9, Appendix H; and Provisions Concerning the Americans with Disabilities Act, Appendix H.

Can you please clarify where the reference to the ADA is mentioned in Appendix H?

Answer 89:  Page 5 of the Confirmation Certificate should have read:  “Confirm that the Offeror will not enter into any contracts or subcontracts, or utilize the services of any contractor, unless the contractor or subcontractor complies with Commonwealth Management Directive 215.9 (available at Appendix H) and provisions concerning the Americans with Disabilities Act.”  A revised Confirmation Certificate, Appendix G, is available at 
http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/GeneralEdit.aspx?SID=INS%20CHIP%202008-4 to correct this error.  The Americans with Disabilities Act was not provided as an appendix to the RFP. 
Question 90:  On P 92 of the RFP, it states under financial support, Three-part provider payment model, 2nd bullet:

Enhancement to existing capitation payments for initial three (3) years; lump sum payments aligned with stepwise achievement of the three (3) levels of NCQA PPC-PCMH recognition 

Does a PCP automatically get an enhancement to cap just for participating or just for meeting the level requirements?  If the latter, does the PCP get both the cap and the lump sum?

Answer 90:  In the only collaborative to have been rolled out thus far, the Southeast Learning Collaborative, participating practices receive a one-time payment for  infrastructure development which includes licensing fee for registry, support for data entry to registry, cost of NCQA survey tool, NCQA application fee, and lost revenue for time to attend seven (7) days of learning collaborative meetings in the first year.  In the Southeast Rollout, these payments totaled about $11,000 per practice and are a one-time payment.  

 

Practices only receive the prorated annual payment upon certification by NCQA.

 

Question 91:  What is the Insurance Department requirements for the establishment (if any) of a time frame for the receipt of additional information from a physician in order to make a UR decision? For example, under Act 68 it indicates that we can ask the provider for more information because the information provided was not adequate to make a decision. Once we ask, what kind of timeframe do we have to give a provider? Can we establish one under our own policy? Is there an established timeframe for the receipt of the additional information from the provider?
Answer 91:  No, PID does not have a specific timeframe for receiving a response or receipt of additional information from a provider.  The contractor may establish that under its own policy.  
Question 92:  Should we submit all encounters processed during a given month or only the paid encounters? If denied encounters are to be included, is it the intent of the Insurance Department to see everything that we processed or only specific denial types?

Answer 92: Contractors will be required to submit all encounters processed during a given month, including denied claims for any denial reason. 
Question 93:  Under Section E.1.e, it states that the provider network should be provided in an Excel format. Is it the intent of the Insurance Department to have the network provided to you only in electronic format or do you want it both in hard copy and electronic. If hard copy, it would be a very large product and would hamper our ability to provide other documentation in the Attachment binder. 

Answer 93:  Offerors should submit their provider networks in an Excel format electronically, e.g., on CD or flash drive.  Hard copy format is not required.

Question 94:  As a new contractor, will there be a grace period for development and implementation of all reporting requirements other encounter data?

Answer 94:  New contractors will be expected to begin development and implementation efforts for reporting requirements and encounter data following its readiness review and successful interface with CAPS.  The Department does not expect new contractors to be ready when the data warehouse will be developed with an estimated go-live date of January 2009.  (Please see response to question #29.)  
Question 95:  Clarification is requested as follows: Is an Offeror permitted to terminate a member retroactively for non-payment of member premium.

Answer 95:   Yes, please refer to the procedures manual at Chapter 8.2 and Chapter 18.2. 
Question 96:  During a CHIP contract period, after contractors have been selected,  is a Contractor allowed to expand into other areas of the State for the provision of  CHIP?  For example, the contractor is providing CHIP services to eligible individuals in three counties of the State and a year into the contract they would like to expand coverage to two (2) additional counties.

Answer 96:  Yes, contractors are allowed to expand, solely at the discretion of the Department.  Requests for expansion must be accompanied by a programmatic change form (found in the CHIP Procedures Manual); an approval letter from the Department of Health granting licensing authority in the counties in question; and a list of providers, their specialty(ies), and county(ies) in which they operate.  The Department will make its determination based, inter alia, on the performance of the contractor at the time of the request and any programmatic/legislative issues that might impact the expansion.
 

Additional Questions and Answers – Addendum Period

Question 97:  We have a question pertaining to RFP Section II.11.A 4 & 5 beginning on page 38 of the RFP:  

Consistent with federal requirements (see 42 CFR 457.618), these provisions limit the administrative and risk/contingency components of the rate bid to a specified % of the Total Reimbursement Rate.  Please confirm that a contract awarded pursuant to such a rate bid meets all requirements of 40 P.S. 991.2311(b)(3) & (4).   (August 7, 2008)

Answer 97: The RFP requests rate information in a manner consistent with both state and federal law.
Question 98:  We submitted our response to the CHIP RFP 2008-4 on Friday, August 1, 2008.  Our reading of the addendum indicates that there is no change to the elements of the RFP if you are responding as an MCO. The only change was to those plans that were responding as non-MCO as their service delivery. Based upon this as our review, we would like to know if we have to re-submit. 

At this point in our reading of the revised addendum, the only change that we would make would be the date since it was extended to 8/22. Is this material? All of the documents that were required have signature execution dates of prior to 8/22. Please advise.  (August 7, 2008)

Stated Differently:  Since we are an MCO that filed our RFP response on 8/1/08, do we have to re-submit our formal response or will this be accepted as our formal response? What should we do since we are responding as a MCO delivery model? (August 7, 2008)
Answer 98:  You are correct.  There is no change to the elements of the RFP, other than the extension of the proposal delivery date to August 22, 2008, at 11:00 a.m., if your proposal is for use of a managed care plan beginning on the first day of the contract.  Only those plans that respond with a proposal for use of a non-managed care plan for service delivery no later than May 31, 2009, are required to submit appendix N, Offeror Representation and Warranty Concerning Use of Other than a Managed Care Plan, in addition to  responding to any provision of the RFP, response template (Appendix F), or confirmation certificate (Appendix G) with alternative responses regarding compliance as described in the Addendum dated 08-06-2008.  
 

Proposals utilizing a managed care plan shall respond to all portions of the RFP, response template, and confirmation certificate as originally set forth in the RFP.  If your original proposal as submitted has met these criteria, you do not need to resubmit.  Use of a signature execution date prior to the proposal closing date of August 22 will have no adverse effect.  Your proposal will be accepted as your formal response. 
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